
 

 
 
 
RFP:  C160001 - Regulatory Compliance Consulting Services 
 
 

VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM 
 
 
 
Amendment Number: Two (includes Q & A Summary) 
 
Date Issued:   February 12, 2016 
 

Summary:    
 
Minimum Qualifications have been revised.  Section 1.5 of the RFP is deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following:   
 

 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS   
 

Any Bidder submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP must meet the minimum 
qualifications listed below at the time of submission of the Proposal.  Information 
demonstrating the qualifications defined below must be incorporated into the bidder’s 
response to Part 4 of this RFP – Information Required from Bidders.   
 
A) Bidder must submit evidence that it is an established firm with at least three (3) years 

demonstrated experience similar in scope to the work required under this RFP, such 
as consulting services related to New York State Laws, Rules and Regulations 
surrounding procurement or implementation of Article 15-A.  

 
B) Have experience evaluating compliance with diversity practices and Minority and 

Woman Owned Business utilization, procurement solicitations and contracts that 
promote and encourage maximum feasible MWBE participations, and compiling 
statistical data. 

 
C) Not hold an existing license under the Commission or any of its Divisions, Bureaus, 

Offices, or regulated entities including prospective gaming facility licensees.   
 

 
By signing below, the bidder attests to receiving and responding to the amendment number 
indicated above.   
 
 
FIRM NAME: ________________________ 
 
REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:  ________________________ 
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE CONSULTING SERVICES 

 
Questions and Answers  

 
Released:  February 12, 2016 

 
 
Q.26:  RFP Section 1.5 (C), Minimum Qualifications, states that the proposer: "Not hold 

an existing license or direct contract under the Commission or any of its Divisions, 
Bureaus, offices or regulated entities including perspective gaming facility 
licensees.” Please define “perspective gaming facility licensees.” 

 
A.26:  The Gaming Facility licensees are named and described on pages 7 – 8 of the RFP 

under Background Information, Section 1.4.    
 
Q.27:  RFP Section 1.5 (C ) Does this section apply to subcontractors of the proposer if 

less than 15% of the proposer bid amount and if so, should the proposer define 
the potential conflict of interest as required in Section 4.4 or will the proposer 
automatically be disqualified from the bid process.  

 
A.27:  This minimum qualification applies to the prime contractor for purposes of 

qualifying to submit a Proposal.  However, if a prime is proposing use of a 
subcontractor that has “an existing license or direct contract under the 
Commission or any of its Divisions, Bureaus, offices or regulated entities including 
perspective gaming facility licenses” then, yes, this information must be defined 
as required in Section 4.4 of the RFP.  This circumstance would not automatically 
disqualify a proposer.  Such information would be analyzed and a determination 
would be made by the Commission as to whether a conflict or perceived conflict 
exists.  The outcome of that determination is wholly dependent upon the situation.    

 
Q.28:  RFP Section 2.6, Compensation, states “Travel is not anticipated under the scope of 

work and will not be compensated.” Does the Gaming Commission anticipate that all 
compliance monitoring will be done via paper check?  

 
a. Will the Gaming Commission consider the reimbursement of reasonable travel 

expenses? For site verification checks, travel to Gaming office as requested 
 
A.28:  See response to A.11. 
 
Q.29:  Is the Gaming Commission only considering awarding one contract to assess the four 

selected gaming facilities or will the Gaming Commission consider more than one award 
to evaluate the different gaming locations?  

 
A.29: See response A.17. 
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Q.30:  After the contract is awarded and the contractor has started working, how many days 
would the successful contactor have to wait before receiving payment?  

 
A.30: Payment under the Contract will be in accordance with State Finance Law Article 

11-A as provided in Section 2.7 of the RFP.   As provided in this section, itemized 
invoices shall be submitted on a monthly basis. 

 
Q.31:  After the first payment is received, what would the contractor’s billing and payment cycle 

be going forward? 
 
A.31: See response to A.30. 
 
Q.32:  Since the contractor selected would incur significant expenses performing the contract, 

would the Commission consider paying interest on expenses that go beyond a 30- or 60-
day billing cycle? 

 
A.32: Interest payments would be in accordance with Prompt Payment Law (STF Article 

11-A).  See response to A.30. 
 
Q.33: This proposal seems to be more aligned to large companies; for example, “Does your 

company have a Chief Diversity Officer?”  We hope the Commission will take into 
consideration that small, minority and women-owned businesses expand and contract 
based on the work on hand, just like large companies do. 

 
A.33: The Commission anticipates companies of varied size and expertise to respond to 

this solicitation and there has been no attempt to “align” the requirements to only 
large companies.  The Chief Diversity Officer applies to the scoring section related 
to Diversity Practices, which is a small component of the scoring.  Further, it is 
expected that, despite the size of the company and the title of the position, each 
company will have an individual who oversees the diversity practices of the 
company.     

 
Q.34:  Under the Technical Evaluation criteria, the Commission awards 5 points for MWBE 

Diversity Practices; however, it does not award MWBE firms any points because they are 
already considered diverse.  As a result, a MWBE respondent is automatically 
handicapped 5 basis points in the evaluation.  While the purpose of this practice is 
understandable, it has created a bias that needs to be cured.  Further, if a MBE or WBE 
firm is selected as the contractor, the Commission will count the entire contract value 
toward its MWBE goals. 
  
The Commission should seriously consider removing 5% for non-M/WBE firms and 
should give M/WBE respondents the same 5% to eliminate this bias because they are 
inherently considered diverse. 
 

A.34:  Appendix K of the RFP, which addresses the Diversity Practices, was developed by 
Empire State Development Division of Minority and Women-Owned Business 
Development.  The intent of this initiative is to induce all prime contractors, 
including MWBEs, to diversify their contracting.  The scoring takes into 
consideration that even if a firm is a New York State Certified MWBE, that 
opportunities are shared among other New York State Certified MWBE firms, when 
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practicable.   The scoring section related to Diversity Practices, is a small 
component of the scoring.    
 
Note:  While the diversity practices section is to evaluate each firm’s diversity 
practices, the 30% MWBE participation goal relates to New York State’s MWBE 
utilization.   

 
Q.35:  On page 15 of 50 of the RFP it outlines how the Volume I response should be set up.  It 

lists 1-9 “tabs”.  Tab 8 is Certifications and Representations.  What forms, appendix, 
attachments, etc., if any, are we to include in Tab 8 of our Volume I response?  I believe 
Appendix D (Non-Collusive Bidding Certification) would be included in Tab 8?  Yes, No? 
Are any other Appendix, etc. to be included under Tab 8? 

 
This question really only pertains to Tab 8 and the above question….Trying to be more 
clear, but along the same line, where in the 1-9 Tabs that make up Volume I do we put 
the various Appendix, etc.?  We can see from page 15 that certain Appendix go under 
certain Tabs but not all Appendix are accounted for specifically in the 1-9 Tabs.  I believe 
Appendix(s) that are not specifically accounted for under the other Tabs should go under 
Tab 8?  Yes, No? 
 

A.35:  Section 1.16.B(8) refers to all other documents, not specifically referred to in Items 
1 – 7 of that section, that a bidder is required to submit with its Proposal.  Yes, as 
noted, the Technical Proposal Submittal Checklist, Attachment 3, lists these other 
documents (Procurement Lobbying Form, Non-Collusive Bidding Certification).  

 
 The intent of requiring tabs is so that the Commission can easily find the 

documents/certifications and so that the Evaluation Committee (scoring members) 
can clearly identify bidder responses to specific requirements (response to Part 4).   

 
It is really important to include page numbers throughout the Proposal.  

 
Q.36:  Will the contracted firm have access to payroll data to use as a cross reference to 

evaluate the licensee’s work force utilization reports? 
 

A.36: Yes. 
 
Q.37:  On p.45 Note Relevant to sec 4.5 and 4.6, it is indicated that contractor will assume 40 

solicitations as well as resulting contracts per quarter for the first year. Does this include 
construction, and should we use this number after the first year? Or are there an 
estimated number of solicitations for years 2-5 of the contract?  
 

A.37: Yes, the assumption does include construction, but not a specific number of 
construction related contracts.   

 
 As noted under the “Note”, the purpose of the assumption is to provide a basis for 

each bidder to propose project management and staffing and a work plan in 
response to the scope of services defined under the RFP.   
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There is no need to make an assumption for subsequent years.  As noted, using 
this assumption and each bidder’s response to Section 4.5 and 4.6, will allow the 
Commission to evaluate each Proposal.   

 
 Compensation to the successful contractor will be based on actual hours work and 

the hourly rates bid under each title for each year as defined in Attachment 2 – 
Pricing Proposal Form.  

 
Q.38:  Please clarify expectations regarding meeting the Additional Services requirements 

specific to Prevailing Wage Rates as noted on p. 41, C.1 of the RFP and Questions and 
Answers A1 and A2. 
 

A.38:  As provided in response A.1 and A.2.  It is not anticipated that the consultant will 
be required to review certified payrolls against the Prevailing Wage Schedules, but 
the consultant may be required to verify that certified payroll records are 
submitted as required by law. 

 
Q.39:  Is this a Public Works contract? 
 
A.39:  Yes.  See Section 1346.4 of the Upstate New York Gaming Economic Development 

Act. 
 
Q.40:  Can you provide a list of the interested proposers to this solicitation?  
 
A.40:  No.   
 
Q.41:  According to Section 1.5A of the RFP, "bidder must submit evidence that it is an 

established firm with at least three (3) years demonstrated experience similar in scope to 
the work required under this RFP, such as consulting services related to New York State 
Laws, Rules and Regulations surrounding procurement or implementation of Article 15-
A." 

 
a)  Will the Commission consider a Bidder that is established for 2.5 years at 
schedule start of the contract, with demonstrated experience as required in the RFP, 
and an executive team that has over 40 years of experience in comparable work?  
 
b)  If the prime firm has been established for 2.5 years at scheduled start of the 
contract, and the joint firm has been established for 3 plus years at scheduled start 
of the contract, does the joint firm's term in business satisfy the 3 year requirement? 
 

A.41: (a) No.  This company would not meet the minimum qualification of three years. 
 
(b)  If a joint proposal is submitted under the circumstance outlined above, and the 
joint firm has the three years of qualifying experience at the time of Proposal 
submission, then that Proposal will have met that minimum qualification.  The 
minimum qualification must be met at the time of submission of the Proposal, not 
at a later date.   
 
Section 1.5 of the RFP is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:   
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 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS   
 

Any Bidder submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP must meet the minimum 
qualifications listed below at the time of submission of the Proposal.  Information 
demonstrating the qualifications defined below must be incorporated into the 
bidder’s response to Part 4 of this RFP – Information Required from Bidders.   
 
A) Bidder must submit evidence that it is an established firm with at least three (3) 

years demonstrated experience similar in scope to the work required under this 
RFP, such as consulting services related to New York State Laws, Rules and 
Regulations surrounding procurement or implementation of Article 15-A.  

 
B) Have experience evaluating compliance with diversity practices and Minority 

and Woman Owned Business utilization, procurement solicitations and 
contracts that promote and encourage maximum feasible MWBE participations, 
and compiling statistical data. 

 
C) Not hold an existing license under the Commission or any of its Divisions, 

Bureaus, Offices, or regulated entities, including prospective gaming facility 
licensees.   

 
Q.42:  Given the concern regarding Conflicts of Interest addressed within the Questions and 

Answers released on February 5, 2016, what would the New York State Gaming 
Commission consider a “conflict of interest”?  

 
A.42: It is not possible to specify all circumstances that may be considered a “conflict of 

interest”, but Section 1.5(C) of the RFP, Minimum Qualifications, lists some 
instances.  

 
Q.43:  In Section 1.21, it states that “Any Bidder awarded a contract under this RFP will have an 

on-going obligation to inform the Commission of any actual or apparent conflicts of 
interest”. If a Bidder wins the award for this RFP, how much time between being awarded 
the contract does the Bidder have to release any contracts that may create the 
appearance of a potential conflict of interests?  

 
A.43: First, the Commission would determine if there is in fact a conflict or appearance 

of a conflict of interest and then make a determination.  However, Section 1.5(C), 
Minimum Qualifications, sets forth circumstances under which a bidder may not 
even qualify to bid under this RFP.  Also, see response A.27. 

 
Q.44:  In Section 4.5-F, it indicates that the “Descriptive information relative to the 

subcontractor’s organization and capabilities must be included”. It is to our understanding 
that this would encompass a Company Narrative, as well as the firm’s Relative 
Experience. In addition, Section 4.3 of the proposal states that, “If utilizing a 
subcontractor, include an additional three references for the subcontractor”. Aside from 
the additional references, the Company Narrative, and the firm’s Relative Experience, are 
the subconsultants required to submit any other documentation?  
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A.44: In response to Section 4.5(F), the prime bidder submitting the proposal must list all 
subcontractors that it plans to utilize and describe the role the subcontractor will 
fill in meeting the requirements under a resulting contract.  And, as provided in 
this section, the bidder must also provide descriptive information about the 
subcontractor, including information about the company, capabilities of the 
company, etc.  The intent is to provide the Commission with as much information 
needed to assess the prime bidder’s use of the subcontractor(s) under a resulting 
contract.      

 
Q.45:  Given Answer #5 to the Questions and Answers released on February 5, 2016, is there 

an expected start date for the Tioga Downs Casino & Racing project, though they have 
not yet been approved for licensure? 

 
A.45: No.  There is no anticipated award, licensure, and therefore, start date for Tioga at 

this time.   
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